
CITY OF BEVERLY HILLS
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

345 FOOTHILL ROAD
BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210

Thursday, September 21, 2017

ADDENDUM NO. 3
RFP 17-44: Custodial Maintenance Services

September 21, 2017

ITEM NO. 1

Questions on the Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 17-44 were due at 5:00 P.M. (Pacific) on Tuesday,
September 19, 2017. The following are attached:

 Written responses to the questions

Attachments to the written responses to questions:

 Table of Approximate Area of Carpet
 Strike-out/underline version of edits to text for floor waxing
 Clean version of edited text for floor waxing
 Original Custodial Maintenance Services Agreement
 3 amendments to Original Custodial Maintenance Services Agreement
 Invoices
 Strike-out/underline version of edits to Library text
 Clean version of edited Library text
 Strike-out/underline version of edits to Parking Structures text
 Clean version of edited Parking Structures text

--This page plus the responses to questions plus the attachments comprise Addendum No. 3--
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Addendum 3
Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 17-44: Custodial Maintenance Services

City of Beverly Hills
September 21, 2017

1. Are all forms that need to be submitted in the RFP packet?

Yes, everything that is specifically needed for a proposal, including all forms, is in the RFP
packet.

2. Is there any specific equipment required for the work?

The tasks in the RFP have to be completed, regardless of the type of equipment. The
Standards of Service must be met. There is limited information in the RFP about the type of
equipment required.

The City would like to know what equipment the contractor is using.  See RFP (p. 31), General
Requirements, p. Supplies and Equipment.  That section states: “…All supplies, products and
equipment used by the Contractor must be approved by the Administrator…”

There are areas of the City where a specific method must be used.  For example, as stated in
the RFP (p. 55) under “City Hall”: “…On a semi-annual basis, as set forth in the General Area
standards of Service Section, the Council Chambers shall be cleaning (sic) using a dry cleaning
type process of instead of steam cleaning.”

In addition, the RFP (p. 31) states: “…All vacuum cleaners and [sic] shall include rubber or
padding affixed in a manner so as to protect walls, baseboards and furniture from damage when
in use…”

The RFP (p. 49) Parking Structure Pressure Washing Standard of Work, b. Water Conservation,
states: “Contractor shall implement pressure washing methods and use pressure washing
equipment that minimizes water usage and water waste.  Contractor shall obtain water from
City-approved not-potable [sic] water sources, unless otherwise notified by City, such as the
Cabrillo Reservoir, which may require special trucks and other equipment for access…”

The RFP (p. 51) Parking Structure Pressure Washing Standard of Work, n. Equipment,
Materials and Supplies, states: “All equipment will be required to conform to the height
restrictions of the individual parking facilities, the lowest of which is 6’5”…”

3. The RFP states that carpet cleaning will be done as requested.  Is there more information
on the frequency of carpet cleaning?  Will it be requested/done on an as-needed basis?

The RFP lays out a framework for: standard of service for carpets, frequency of carpet cleaning,
and as-needed carpet cleaning.
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The RFP (p. 35) states under General Area Standards of Service: “Floors/Carpets shall be free
of visible debris, soil, dust, residue, and stains.”

In general, the frequency of carpet steam cleaning is two times per year.  The RFP (p. 38)
states:

“d. Semi-Annual General Cleaning Requirements
…iv. All carpeted areas shall be steam cleaned.”

The Facility-Specific Scope of Services outlines additional carpet-cleaning requirements for
specific locations.  The RFP (p. 53) states for the Police Department: “Carpeted areas in all
hallways and corridors shall be steam cleaned two (2) additional times per year for a total of four
(4) times per year.”

Spot cleaning is as-needed. The RFP (pp. 36-37) states (under General Area Standards of
Service, General Cleaning Requirements:

“a. Daily General Cleaning Requirements
…
x. All carpets, including elevator cabs, mats beneath desks and “walk-off” mats, shall be
vacuumed and spot cleaned as necessary.”

The term “as-needed” refers to the fact that the City has laid out a standard.  “As-needed” tends
to not refer to an area that needs ongoing care.  “As-needed” refers more to areas that should
be inspected and cleaned only when necessary.  The City would evaluate the status of the
carpets and if carpet cleaning is not getting done on a regular basis, the City would look to the
contractor to explain the reason.

If there is something else that falls within “as-needed,” then it should be addressed by the
contractor.

4. The City has provided square footage for the buildings.  Will there be specific square
footage provided for the carpets?

The City does not have exact measurements of the square feet of carpet for the facilities
covered under the RFP.  Beverly Hills staff has attempted to develop an estimate as a courtesy
in an effort to assist any potential vendors in preparing proposals. See attached table of
estimated square feet of carpet in the facilities covered in the RFP. However, this is not a
precise determination of exact square footage of carpet covered under the RFP. The potential
proposer must decide to what extent he/she will utilize the attached table in developing a
proposal. The selected contractor is responsible for meeting the standards of service and
completing the designated work for the proposed amount of money, regardless of the level of
precision of the attached table.  The potential proposer or selected contractor may not make any
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claims against the City in the case that the actual square feet of carpet is different from the
estimated square feet on the table.

5. Are the contractors responsible for determining square footage?

See response to Question #4 above regarding estimated square feet of carpet.  Other than what
has been provided in the RFP and these responses, the selected vendor will be responsible for
any discrepancies in square feet by accounting for such discrepancies and functionally
completing the work.

6. Is there a specific cleaning schedule for the Police Department?  Will the jail cells need
deep cleaning?  Is there a specific time for cleaning the Police Department?

Please refer to the other cleaning requirements and standards of service that apply to all City
facilities, which would also apply to the Police Department.  For example, the following items
need to be addressed at the Police Department: General Requirements; General Area
Standards of Service; Restroom, Locker Room, and Kitchen Area Standards of Service; etc.
Cleaning of  jail cell restrooms, jail locker rooms, and the jail kitchen area is included in the
required duties.  In addition, see page 53 of the RFP covering Facility-Specific Scope of
Services for the Police Department.  General cleaning of the Police Department is to occur after
6:00 P.M. Monday-Friday.  Special cleaning is to occur daily 8:00AM – 5:00PM daily.  Special
cleaning for the Police Department is defined in the RFP (p. 53). Special cleaning includes the
assignment of one Day Porter exclusively to the jail area, daily, from 8:00AM to 5:00PM (RFP,
p. 53).  This Day Porter will split time between Police Department and the Library Facility on
Saturday and Sunday (RFP, p. 53).

Regarding schedule, carpeted areas shall be steam cleaned four times a year at the Police
Department (RFP, p. 53).

In practice, cleaning of the Police Department, including the jail cells, depends on the urgency.
Cleaning of the Police Department is a special occurrence every few months or so, and one of
the only areas potentially needing deep cleaning will be in the dispatch area. In the jail, there is
always someone (the Day Porter, daily, from 8:00AM to 5:00PM), so there should not be any
special deep cleaning needs often.

7. Will there be standards or products required in regards to floor waxing?

The RFP does not provide specifics regarding standards or products required in regards to floor
waxing. Generally, the City is more concerned about the outcome. The outcome should
demonstrate compliance with the standard, which allows the contractor(s) to choose how they
do the work to meet the standard. The City has people on staff dedicated to checking work
standards for custodial maintenance services.



Page 4 of 8
Thursday, September 21, 2017

The General Area Standards of Service (RFP, p. 35) include the following text: ““Floors/Carpet
shall be free of visible debris, oil, dust, residue, and stains.”

The following underlined text is now added to the existing section in the RFP (p. 36, General
Cleaning Requirements).

“a. Daily General Cleaning Requirements
…
ii…Wax shall be reapplied as necessary and buffed to a uniform high gloss where applicable. A
commercial grade floor wax will be used and the number of coats shall be determined by the
contractor in order to give the floor an appropriate finish. All wax deposits shall be removed
from furniture legs, cabinets, baseboards, and door jambs.”

The RFP (p. 37) shall be modified to add the following text:

“a. Daily General Cleaning Requirements
…
xiv. Composition floors shall be damp mopped. Floor wax shall be reapplied as necessary to
maintain an acceptable surface condition. A commercial grade floor wax will be used and the
number of coats shall be determined by the contractor in order to give the floor an appropriate
finish.”

The RFP (p. 38) shall be modified to add the following text:

“c. Monthly General Cleaning Requirements

i. All composition and hardwood floors shall be appropriately cleaned and waxed, as
directed by the Administrator. A commercial grade floor wax will be used and the
number of coats shall be determined by the contractor in order to give the floor an
appropriate finish.”

The RFP (p. 38) shall be modified to add the following text:

“d. Semi-Annual General Cleaning Requirements

i. Composition floors shall be stripped and re-waxed, as directed by the Administrator.
The Contractor must make advance arrangements with the Administrator. A
commercial grade floor wax will be used and the number of coats shall be
determined by the contractor in order to give the floor an appropriate finish.”

8. Please provide the current contract amount and current SOW.

The total contract amount for Able Building Maintenance Company is $904,283.02 for the six-
month period between July 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017. This includes a monthly cost of



Page 5 of 8
Thursday, September 21, 2017

$136,547.17 ($819,283.02 for six months), plus an $85,000 contingency for the purchase of
supplies as well as additional as-needed services that may be required.

See attached the original agreement and the three amendments.

9. Please provide copy of current janitorial invoices.

See attached invoices covering the time period from July 1, 2017 through August 31, 2017.

10. Who is the current provider?

Able Building Maintenance Company

11. In the last contract year what was the total $ value of penalties accrued by the current
vendor?

Zero.

12. Are the spreadsheets pictured on pages 98, 99, 100, 102, & 106 in an excel file we can
access to populate?

No, the tables are not available in an Excel spreadsheet.

13. The scope of work on page 54 for the Library states:
“Special Cleaning: Monday – Saturday    10am -9pm”

“Sunday                           12pm-4pm”
And under the “Special Cleaning Scope” on page 54 it states:
“One (1) Day Porter shall be assigned exclusively to the library, Monday – Saturday from
4:00pm to 9:00pm. One (1) Day Porter shall be assigned to both the police station and
library facility on Saturday and Sunday.”
These conflict with the times listed under the “Special Cleaning” time frames above. Can
you please clarify if a day porter is needed Monday-Saturday 10am-9pm or 4pm-9pm? On
Sundays, will the one (1) day porter be walking between both the police station and
library 12-4pm?

See attached edits to Facility-Specific Scope of Services for the Library. Some of the hours
have been changed.

The Special Cleaning times listed at the top of p. 54 (Library) define when Day Porter(s)
(SPECIAL CLEANING) should be available to work at the Library. The proposer needs to
define how many Day Porters are needed, and where they are to be assigned throughout the
City, to provide the services described in order to meet the City’s standards.

Specifically, a Day Porter must be assigned exclusively and be onsite at the Library Monday-
Friday from 4:00PM to 9:00PM.  A Day Porter must be assigned exclusively and be onsite at the
Library on Saturday and Sunday from 12:00PM to 4:00PM.
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There is Day Porter assigned to the jail area, daily, from 8:00AM to 5:00PM. Yes, on Sundays,
the Day Porter at the Police Station will be available to also work at the Library. If the Day
Porter was at the Police Station for example, and there was an urgent issue at the Library, the
Day Porter would be called and directed to go to the Library.  As stated in the RFP (p. 34):
“Contractor shall furnish mobile phones for all supervisory and day porter personnel at no
additional cost to City. Mobile phones shall be properly functioning so that designated City staff
may contact Contractor’s personnel during working hours.” This shared Day Porter is in
addition to the Day Porter assigned exclusively to the Library on Sunday from 12:00PM to
4:00PM.

Please note that the contractor’s focus should be on meeting the standards of service
regardless of the methods and staffing.

See the definition of Day Porter in the RFP (p. 27). “DAY PORTER shall mean the Contractor’s
personnel assigned to specific facilities during the daytime where indicated.  The Day Porter
shall ensure facilities are maintained to City standards described herein at all times.  Day Porter
activities shall not replace routine general cleaning requirements.  The Day Porter shall also
perform additional duties as directed by the Administrator or designee.”

The basic concept of the Day Porter is that the City wants to assign a person, i.e., a Day Porter,
during specific hours, so that the Day Porter must also respond to specific direction from the
Administrator or designee. This is different than general cleaning requirements and timelines.
The idea is that general cleaning is done when Library visitors are not present.

14. The scope on page 71 for parking structure 345 North Beverly Drive under #6 states
“Dedicated Day porter service shall be assigned, daily, between 9am to 5:30pm, to
provide the following services. Additional Day Porter service shall be provided Tuesday,
Wednesday, and Thursday from 9am to 5:30pm.” To clarify, there will be two-day porters
working on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday?

See attached edits to Facility-Specific Scope of Services for 345 North Beverly Drive Parking
Structure and other parking structures.

This text does not necessarily mean that there would be two Day Porters working Tuesday,
Wednesday, and Thursday.

The proposer needs to define how many Day Porters are needed to provide the services
described in order to meet the City’s standards.  Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays
require additional services due to the increased traffic.  In the proposal, there should be
additional staffing on Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursday, compared with the other days of
the week.

See the definition of Day Porter in the RFP (p. 27). The basic concept of the Day Porter is that
the City wants to assign a person, i.e., a Day Porter, during specific hours, so that the Day
Porter must also respond to specific direction from the Administrator or designee.  This is
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different than general cleaning requirements and timelines. The idea is that general cleaning is
done after hours.  A Day Porter is available during the day to respond to specific direction from
the Administrator or designee.

The contractor’s focus should be on meeting the standards of service regardless of the methods
and staffing.

Note that there are two parking structures where a Day Porter must be at that specific parking
structure during all the hours of the time period. At The Gardens Building/Montage Parking
Structure, a Day Porter is required to be present Monday through Friday, 10:00AM-4:00PM.  At
the Beverly Canon Parking Structure, a Day Porter is required to be present Monday through
Friday, 10:00AM-4:00PM.  Otherwise, the contractor is responsible for defining staff needs of
Day Porters at the parking structures during the given times and days, so as to meet the
standards of service.

15. On a couple different pages regarding parking structures – i.e. page 72 for 461 North
Bedford Parking Structure it states, “special cleaning – after 1pm”, But on #6 it states a
day porter is needed from 9am-5:30pm. I am not sure what “special cleanings” would be
taking place after 1pm – please advise.

“AFTER 1:00 PM” has been changed to “9:00AM-5:30PM.”  See attached edits to Facility-
Specific Scope of Services for 461 North Bedford Drive Parking Structure and the other parking
structures.  Special Cleaning refers to Day Porter Service.  Duties of the Day Porter for 461
North Bedford Drive Parking Structure are defined under #6 on p. 72.  The contractor’s focus
should be on meeting the standards of service regardless of the methods and staffing. The
proposer needs to define how many Day Porters are needed to provide the services described
in order to meet the City’s standards.

See the definition of Day Porter in the RFP (p. 27). The basic concept of the Day Porter is that
the City wants to assign a person, i.e., a Day Porter, during specific hours, so that the Day
Porter must also respond to specific direction from the Administrator or Designee.  This is
different than general cleaning requirements and timelines. The idea is that general cleaning is
done after hours.  A Day Porter is available during the day to respond to specific direction from
the Administrator or designee.

Note that there are two parking structures where a Day Porter must be at that specific parking
structure during all the hours of the time period. At The Gardens Building/Montage Parking
Structure, a Day Porter is required to be present Monday through Friday, 10:00AM-4:00PM.  At
the Beverly Canon Parking Structure, a Day Porter is required to be present Monday through
Friday, 10:00AM-4:00PM.  Otherwise, the contractor is responsible for defining staff needs of
Day Porters at the parking structures during the given times and days, so as to meet the
standards of service.

16. Is there an option to stagger the start date at the locations?

No, there is no option to stagger the start date at the locations.
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17. I wanted to see if any of the building needs appointments to take a look and view.  If so,
how would we go about setting up an appointment to do so?  If we could be set up to see
the Police Station, Library, and City Hall, it would be appreciated.

Addendum No. 2 was published with instructions on how to obtain access to locations not
publicly accessible.  An optional site visit was conducted on September 20, 2017 to the Library,
City Hall, and Police Department.


